
GOFFSTOWN CONSERVATION COMMISSION 

MINUTES TO MEETING OF SEPTEMBER 28, 2016 

 

Page 1 of 8 

 

In attendance were Jean Walker—Chairman, Susan Tucker, David Nieman, Evelyn Miller, Karen McRae, 

Chuck Freiburger, Collis Adams—Selectmen’s Representative, and Patty Gale—Planning Assistant.   

 

Public Discussion: 

Presentation of a project by Jessica Edmonds, Girl Scouts, and David Pierce regarding volunteering to 

make signs for hiking trails. 

Jessica Edmonds said she is a junior at Goffstown High School and is working to earn her Girl Scout Gold 

Award.  It is the highest level award someone her age can earn.  To complete it, you have to identify a 

problem in your community that needs fixing.  You then complete a project of 80 hours.  The problem 

she identified is that some of the trails on Uncanoonuc Mountain aren’t well marked, or the signs were 

tattered.  There were also no summit signs so people wouldn’t know where the summit was.  To solve 

that problem, she routed and painted signs to put on the trail and on the summit.  She just needs to put 

them up.  She will also do two days of trash pick-up.  She showed the Commission some of the signs she 

made.  

 

Evelyn Miller asked if there are marks going up the trail to mark it.   

 

David Pierce, 21 Mill Street, said he is serving as Jessica Edmond’s community advisor regarding this 

project.  She and he walked every trail on both mountains.  We picked out which tree would be 

appropriate for the signs, and at the various intersections to direct which would be the proper one to 

continue on.  For the Conservation Commission, it primarily affects the Summit Trail, the Incline Trail, 

and Walker Trail.  They also have permission from the Village Precinct to mark on their trails.   

 

Jessica Edmonds said there are about 50 or so signs.  

 

David Pierce said she’s just looking for the Commission’s acknowledgement that you are putting up the 

signs and don’t have concerns.   Various people have put tin cans up to mark trails, but this is just 

signage for the intersections. 

 

Susan Tucker asked if there was signage for parking. 

 

Jessica Edmonds said there is at least one place where there is a sign for parking.   

 

David Pierce said there are a number of pull-offs on Mountain Road.  There isn’t a sign that says parking 

for hiking.  In most areas you immediately see a trailhead sign.  In hiking these trails, he noticed his 

three-year-old map is out of date.  Self-made trails have been added. 

 

The Commission thanked her for her work.   

 

Recommendations requested by the ZBA in regards to the following applications: 

Mario & Gloria Pelletier, Applicants/Owners are seeking a Variance to allow a 28’ X 34’ garage, 16’ X 

20’ breezeway and a 14’ X 16’ deck to be built within the inner 50’ of the 100 ft. Wetland and Surface 

Water Conservation (WSWC) District Buffer.  This concerns Section 13.3.3.3 & 13.3.3.5 of the 



GOFFSTOWN CONSERVATION COMMISSION 

MINUTES TO MEETING OF SEPTEMBER 28, 2016 

 

Page 2 of 8 

 

Goffstown Zoning Ordinance.  The property is located on 46 Danis Park Road, (Map 23 Lot 17), zoned: 

Residential-2. 

Mario Pelletier said they plan to build a garage with a deck out back and a breezeway.  We have a brook 

behind us.   

 

Jean Walker confirmed what they are building isn’t going to be closer to the brook than what they have. 

 

Mario Pelletier said they won’t have.  The deck will but up against the pool deck. 

 

Patty Gale said the existing pool and shed are closer to the brook than what they are building. It used to 

be only 50 feet and now it’s 100 feet.  This is the only thing they need a variance for. 

 

David Nieman asked if the rest of the property is lawn.   

 

Mario Pelletier said it is, unless you cross the brook and then it is trees.  Where the work is going on is 

lawn and garden.   

 

Patty Gale explained that they need a recommendation from the Conservation Commission for when 

they go to the ZBA.   

 

Jean Walker said the deck is even with the pool.  The breezeway is even with the house and the garage 

is even with the deck.   

 

Mario Pelletier said it’s close to that, but probably not that far.   

 

Evelyn Miller said it looks like it’s about 7 feet out from the line of the house.   

 

Mario Pelletier said that is correct. 

 

Jean Walker said the main concern is that people start to fill in around the brook.  You already have it as 

a lawn.   

 

David Nieman said he thinks the impact of these changes doesn’t have any impact on the spirit of the 

buffer we are trying to protect.  The deck is going between the garage and the pool.  It’s not taking away 

vegetation that is a significant buffer.  It is within the spirit of what the Conservation District is trying to 

accomplish. 

 

Collis Adams said he concurs. 

 

Karen McRae said the diagram is very nicely done. 

 

David Nieman made a motion that the Conservation Commission recommends this be approved 

because the material changes to the lot are on an existing residential lawn setting, and there is no 

ecological impact of the area and the spirit of the ordinance is accomplished.  Chuck Freiburger 

seconded the motion.  VOTE: 6-0-0.  All in favor.  Motion carries. 

 

Patty Gale said she called and emailed all these people.  This next applicant is not here tonight.   



GOFFSTOWN CONSERVATION COMMISSION 

MINUTES TO MEETING OF SEPTEMBER 28, 2016 

 

Page 3 of 8 

 

 

Edward Ruck, Applicant & Theresa & Howard Leonard, Owners, are seeking Variances to allow a deck 

to remain that was built within the side setback, rear setback and within the inner 50’ of the 100 ft. 

Wetland and Surface Water Conservation (WSWC) District Buffer along Mountain Base Pond.  This 

concerns Section 4.3 (Table of Dimensional Regulations), 13.3 (WSWC District) and 13.3.3.5 of the 

Goffstown Zoning Ordinance.  Another Variance is required as the nonconforming structure will be 

increased in size and is located on a Class VI Road that is not Town maintained. This concerns Section 

14. 9, 14.9.2.1 (non-conforming Structures) of the Goffstown Zoning Ordinance.  The property is 

located on 23 McFarland Road, (Map 42 Lot 58), zoned:  Agricultural. 

 

Susan Tucker said she visited the property.  It’s a deck that doesn’t impact the ground.  It’s not 

cemented under.  It’s attached to the house.  There was a deck there but was torn down because it was 

rotten.  They had to tear it down to rebuild a concrete wall that was under the deck that supports the 

house.  The only impact is two or three footings. 

 

Karen McRae said the application states it’s an egress but there are no stairs visible. 

 

Patty Gale said the building inspector stopped the construction. 

 

Karen McRae said the way it is built, there are two stringers that look like the place the stairs will go in.   

 

Susan Tucker said she didn’t walk all around the property.  She only looked at it from the side because 

no one was home. 

 

Chuck Freiburger said he drove by and thought there were stairs off the front of the deck, but he’s not 

sure. 

 

Jean Walker said if there are no stairs, as long as they put them to the side rather than the front, they 

wouldn’t be closer to the water.   

 

Karen McRae said the whole application hinges on the reason for the deck being an egress.  If it is an 

egress, it needs to be show.  Otherwise we are giving permission to say go ahead without knowing what 

they are doing. 

 

Patty Gale said they will be required to get a building permit and the inspector will require it built to 

code.   

 

Karen McRae said if they put the stairs out front they will be in the water. 

 

Chuck Freiburger said it’s not that close. 

 

Patty Gale said the Selectmen will also have to grant a building permit because it is on a class VI road.  

 

David Nieman said there was more like a landing at the top of the stairs. 

 

Patty Gale said they originally had a deck but took it down to repair the wall.  They had small stairs 

coming out of it.  The man who rents it took down the stairs and built the deck to what it was.  Now the 



GOFFSTOWN CONSERVATION COMMISSION 

MINUTES TO MEETING OF SEPTEMBER 28, 2016 

 

Page 4 of 8 

 

deck goes the length of the house.  They were told to stop construction and that they needed a 

variance.  She doesn’t know how long ago the deck was taken down.   

 

Karen McRae said the statement as to why a variance is required reflects they are 30 feet from the 

water.   It needs to be stated that the stairs need to be located no closer to the water than the deck. 

 

Collis Adams asked if a report from a wetland scientist is required. 

 

Patty Gale said when it goes to the Planning Board for relief from the outer buffer it is required by the 

Planning Board.  It was discussed at the last Planning Board meeting.  The impression she got is that they 

are going to leave that alone. 

 

Collis Adams said the whole idea of the report is to demonstrate there won’t be any impact.   

 

Patty Gale said the report is not required for when they go to the ZBA for the inner 50 feet.   

 

Susan Tucker said the deck is there and everyone else has a deck. 

 

Collis Adams suggested the stairs come off away from the city water so there is no further impact in the 

50- foot buffer.   

 

Susan Tucker made a motion to recommend the deck may remain provided the stairs come off the 

deck away from the water so there is no further impact to the 50-foot buffer.  Evelyn Miller seconded 

the motion.  VOTE:  5-1-0.  Karen McRae opposed.  Motion carries. 

 

Review of Shoreland Permit Application for Adam & Rebecca Osburn, to rebuild home outside the 100 

Ft. Surface Water Buffer, Map 31 Lot 20A, 11 Blue Jay Lane.   

 

Alden Beauchemin presented.  He said it is next to the Recreation Center.  There was a house on the lot.  

His plan shows the preconstruction plan and the post construction plan.  All that remains today is the 

garage, driveway, and well.  It is clean cut.  It was just a formality because we triggered the Shoreland 

Protection.  We purposely stayed out of the 100 feet buffer and we are within the 250-foot State 

Shoreland protection.  He explained some of the existing driveway will be reused and reconfigured.  The 

well will be reused.  He pointed out where the new house and attached garage is proposed.  He passed 

around pictures that show the site.  The lot is flat up top and then slopes off.   

 

Evelyn Miller said it’s a steep slope and not well stabilized. 

 

Alden Beauchemin said photo F on page three of their packet shows the slope they are referring to.  It is 

a steep slope but is walkable.  The application still goes to the Town. He knew it was simple but he 

thought it better to have the Conservation Commission look at it.  It was originally on septic but will be 

on sewer. 

 

Collis Adams said the staff at DES will take care of the shoreland. 

 

Karen McRae asked if there was a plan to wall the slope. 



GOFFSTOWN CONSERVATION COMMISSION 

MINUTES TO MEETING OF SEPTEMBER 28, 2016 

 

Page 5 of 8 

 

 

Collis Adams said they couldn’t do that without a permit.  By virtue of the fact that they are applying for 

a shoreland permit, they know the process.   

 

The Commission stated they have no issues of concern. 

 

Luke Nelson, Applicant/Owner, is seeking Variances to remove existing trailer and rebuild a single 

family home on a lot that only has a half an acre whereas one (1) acre is required.  Another variance is 

required to building the home within the inner 50’ of the 100 ft. Wetland and Surface Water 

Conservation (WSWC) District Buffer.  This concerns Section 4.3 (Table of Dimensional Regulations), 

and 13.3 (WSWC District) and 13.3.3.5 of the Goffstown Zoning Ordinance.   The property is located on 

93 Mountain Road, (Map 4 Lot 95), zoned:  Residential-1. 
 

Chuck Freiburger said he drives by it every day.  They’ve been working on it for a while and have a long way to go. 

 

The Board had discussion about whether it was a house, or a single or double wide trailer. 

 

Chuck Freiburger said the whole thing is non-conforming, regardless of what we do. 

 

Patty Gale said the lot is undersized.  There is city water there.  They don’t have to build on the same footprint.  If 

it was a natural disaster they have up to two years to replace and build on the same footprint. 

 

Evelyn Miller there isn’t anything you can do if they build on the same footprint. 

 

Patty Gale said this is within the inner 50 foot buffer.  If they had sewer and water, they would be allowed to build 

in that zone with half an acre.  But because they only have city water, they are required a full acre and need a 

variance for that as well.   

 

Karen McRae said there isn’t enough information to make a decision.   

 

Patty Gale said she contacted them.  The Conservation Commission’s comment is regarding the buffer.  The 

undersized lot is an issue for the ZBA.  

 

Karen McRae said if it is 158 feet along the longest line of their property, that’s the deepest part of the lot where 

they have the house situated.  It gets narrower.  The whole house is probably in the setback.   

 

Susan Tucker said it is 40 feet from the back of the house to the brook.   

 

Jean Walker said the whole thing is in the buffer.   

 

Collis Adams said he’d like to see a site plan.  It’s all within the 100-foot buffer.   

 

Evelyn Miller said she’d like to know the topography.   

 

There was no one present to explain the proposed location of the house and answer some questions the 

Conservation Commission had.  The Commission requests that the owner come to the next meeting on 

October 26, 2016 and the Commission will provide a recommendation to the ZBA after that meeting. 
 

MINUTES 



GOFFSTOWN CONSERVATION COMMISSION 

MINUTES TO MEETING OF SEPTEMBER 28, 2016 

 

Page 6 of 8 

 

Evelyn Miller made a motion to approve the minutes to the Conservation Commission of August 10, 

2016.  Chuck Freiburger seconded the motion.  VOTE: 3-0-2.  Karen McRae, Susan Tucker, and David 

Nieman abstained. Motion carries. 
 

BUDGET 

The Conservation Open Space Fund at Citizen’s Bank has a balance of $77,74.21. The Operating 

Budget Balance is at 2,485.66.  The People’s United Bank CD of 275,000.00.  The Board of Selectmen 

are proposing a budget this year of $20,000.00 for Conservation Commission, to include the 

$15,000.00 for Milfoil.  
 

Karen McRae said they rolled over the CD and we have money still in the account. 

 

Jean Walker asked what they need to do to help the association with their milfoil grant. 

 

The Conservation Commission requested staff to email reminders to the Associations to start the 

process of obtaining grant funding for next year and include NHES on the email. 

 

 

Correspondence: 

Email from Kimberly Peace resigning as a member of the Conservation Commission. 

The Commission thanked her for her years of service.  

 

Collis Adams said we should prepare a letter thanking her. 

 

Email from NH Community Rights Network asking for support for the Resolution Supporting Local Self-

government and the Rights of Nature in regarding to concerns with the NED Pipeline Project 

threatening the ecosystems. 

 

Collis Adams said that issue is dead. 

 

NH sustainable Forestry Initiative Pamphlet. 

 

NHDES Wetlands Permit for Ma 6 Lot 36-1-1, GPS Properties Inc. 

 

Wetlands Utility Notification for PSNH/Eversource Energy. 

 

Brochure about NHACC 46th Annual Meeting & Conference. 

 

Collis Adams asked if anyone is interested in attending.  If so, we need to approve the money to pay. 

 

Letter from NHDES regarding Best Management Practices Rules for Groundwater Protection. 

 

Wetlands Non-Site Specific Permit 2016-01903 for Steve Febonio, Map 3 Lots 26 & 27, Addison Rd. 

 

Town & City Magazine. 

 

PLAN REVIEWS 



GOFFSTOWN CONSERVATION COMMISSION 

MINUTES TO MEETING OF SEPTEMBER 28, 2016 

 

Page 7 of 8 

 

Map 12 Lots 14 & 15, Completeness Review/Subdivision Review Hearing for a proposed Lot Line 

Adjustment between the two lots. The property is located on Montelona Road and owned by Estate 

of Real L Martel C/O Tamblyn Gosling, Esq., Zoned:  Agricultural.   

 

Patty Gale said the Conservation Commission is part of the technical review.  The big parcel is supposed 

to be given to the Forestry Society after 5.229 acres is split of. 

 

David Nieman made a motion that the Conservation Commission gives overwhelming support in this 

lot line adjustment.  Evelyn Miller seconded the motion.  VOTE: 6-0-0.  All in favor.  Motion carries.  

 

Map 6 Lots 1-2 & 1-4, Completeness Review/Site Plan Review Hearing for proposed storage facilities 

on each lot (eight storage buildings on lot 1-2 totaling 46,800 sq. ft., and six buildings on lot 1-4 

totaling 24,800 sq. ft) The Property is located on Goffstown Back Road/Tower Lane and owned by 

McDonough Family Properties, LLC., Zoned:  Commercial Industrial Flex (CIFZ).  

 

Collis Adams said the rule regarding bringing trucks in has been relaxed.  

 

Jean Walker said this is where the Dunkin Donuts will be going.  The wet area is to the side and in back. 

 

Collis Adams said this is across the street from the child care. 

 

Patty Gale said this is two different lots.  Dunkin Donuts was going in the lot across from it—Lot 1-3.   

This came in on Friday and if you want a presentation she will contact them. 

 

The Conservation Commission did not review the plans and requested that the applicant come in and do 

a presentation of the proposed project. 

 

Map 34 Lot 88, Completeness Review/Site Plan Review Hearing for proposed Plumbing Business 

Expansion of use on lot by adding 1,600 sq. ft. warehouse building along with existing 1,606 sq. ft. 

office building, Owner:  Fletcher Mountain USA LLC, located on Church Street, Zoned:  Village 

Commercial.   

 

Collis Adams said this is the old fire garage.  He wasn’t aware it is going to have a second story.  

 

Patty Gale said he’s created a more intense use of his lot.  There are concerns with regards to parking in 

relation to the existing plumbing business.  Staff told him he needs to have a site plan. 

 

Collis Adams said the Selectmen gave him permission but they have to come in to the Planning Board 

for approvals of whatever it will ultimately be developed into.  It was portrayed to the Selectman as only 

being moved over there, not being converted into a two-story warehouse.   

 

Jean Walker said the way she read it sounded like it was going to be preserved. 

 

Collis Adams said “exactly.” 

 

Karen McRae said there are no wetland concerns but she has environmental concerns.  Look at all the 

dumpsters.   



GOFFSTOWN CONSERVATION COMMISSION 

MINUTES TO MEETING OF SEPTEMBER 28, 2016 

 

Page 8 of 8 

 

Collis Adams said he sees one dumpster. 

 

Patty Gale said the office space will be in the existing building. 

 

Karen McRae said parking is nowhere near the round building.  They will have to walk through the 

warehouse. 

 

Evelyn Miller said those are Planning Board issues.  In terms of a conservation thing, there is nothing. 

 

Evelyn Miller made a motion the Conservation Commission reviewed the plans and voted that they 

have no issues or concerns.  David Nieman seconded the motion.  VOTE:  6-0-0.  All in favor.  Motion 

carries. 

 

Karen McRae said it is an eye sore. 

 

David Nieman said he wants to be sure they have the next meeting because they will talk about the 

Open Space and its potential budget.  Someone from the PLC will be there to address it.   

 

Patty Gale asked if the Commission wants to do a booth for the Pumpkin Regatta.  That is October 15
th

 

and 16
th

.   

 

The Commission consensus was to not have a booth at the Pumpkin Regatta this year. 

 

Susan Tucker made a motion to adjourn.  Karen McRae seconded the motion.  VOTE:  6-0-0.  All in 

favor.   Motion carries. 

 

The meeting adjourned at 8:06 pm.   

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

Gail Labrecque 

Recording Secretary 

 

These minutes are subject to approval by the Conservation Commission.  

 


